

PBS archive add on CPP Production Orders

Manual Part B - Administration -

> Compatible with SAP R/3 4.x SAP ERP 5.0 and 6.0



December 2, 2009

© 1999 - 2009 PBS Software GmbH

Schwanheimer Strasse 144a					
64625 Bensheim, Germany					
Phone:	Phone: +49 - 6251 - 174 0				
Fax:	+49 - 6251 - 174 174				
Email:	info@pbs-software.com				
Internet: www.pbs-software.com					



PBS archive add ons[®] is a registered trademark of PBS Software GmbH, Bensheim.

SAP, R/3, SAP ERP, SAP NetWeaver, ABAP and others are registered trademarks of SAP AG, Walldorf/Baden.

Acrobat Reader is a registered trademark of Adobe Systems Incorporated.



Introduction to the PBS ILM Concept

Information Lifecycle Management

Information Lifecycle Management (ILM) means the administration of information related to the time when it is used, taking into account its total costs and compliance. A conclusive, efficient ILM concept must, as a result, control data growth, manage retention rules, and also ensure compliant data storage. Furthermore, an easy access to archived data is decisive and, for example, its transfer during internal and external audits.

PBS ILM Concept

PBS software provides existing SAP customers extensive solutions to put into practice the requirements that were described above for a stringent and successful ILM concept. PBS is considered as an expert for complex, integrated data accesses to archived and database data and meanwhile, also to data that is located on decommissioned SAP systems. In addition to classical SAP data archiving, SAP BI-specific nearline storage is also supported.

PBS archive add ons®

PBS archive add ons always rely on SAP archiving having been carried out successfully. This is the basis for a permanently high-performing SAP system. In principle, you can indeed retain posted documents in the SAP database for a very long time due to a large database capacity. Depending on the document volume, this may result, however, in massive performance losses and, sooner or later, heavily increasing operation costs. The daily backup becomes difficult for large data stocks, for example.

A convenient display and evaluation of archived transaction data – as the SAP user is used to for database data – can often only be carried out in a very restricted manner using SAP standard means depending on the application module. This is particularly the case for large archive data stocks. The PBS archive add ons can be used here. They can be provided for nearly all SAP modules and release levels, and start with a "C" (for Complete) in their description. For example, PBS archive add on CCOPA for the SAP module COPA.

Using the PBS archive add ons you can quickly and easily access your archived data even after data archiving during your day-to-day business. The unrestricted data access is realized by an intelligent indexing concept. It extends the SAP archive infrastructure components and integrates itself optimally with SAP archiving. Archive data that has been indexed can still be provided after a release upgrade immediately, without restrictions, and without migration effort.



The PBS archive index is stored in sequential files of the SAP file system in the same way as the SAP archive data. Afterwards, you can access the archive data online via the familiar transactions. The SAP user can display the data from the SAP database and the archive data simultaneously via the PBS archive add on index. For the user, it seems as though the archived data is still in the SAP database.

The deep integration of the PBS transactions also enables direct navigation to subsequent and previous documents both within the indexed SAP module as well as to linked documents from other SAP modules. This applies not only for resident but also without restrictions for archived data. The benefit for the user increases the more PBS archive add ons are used.

The potential benefits of the ILM concept raises substantially if you take into account the savings that result from the SAP mirror systems. There are usually at least two of them meaning that the saved disk storage can be tripled by performing data archiving. Thus, time is saved for the data backup.



Table of Contents

1.	Introduction		
2.	Overview of the PBS archive add on CPP		
	2.1.	Object Names	7
	2.2.	Supplied Menus	8
	2.3.	Basic Information on the PBS archive add on CPP	10
3.	Co	nstruction of the PBS archive add on CPP	12
	3.1.	Procedure	12
	3.2.	Preparation of SAP Archiving	14
	3.3.	Archiving of Production Orders	18
	3.4. Administration Board		20
	3.5. The Load Program /PBS/CPP_LDR3		21
	3.6.	Load Process	23
	3.7.	Index Activation	25
	3.8.	Further Load Processes	26
	3.9.	Delete PBS Archive Index	27
	3.10.	PBS Archive Utilities	28
	3.11.	Path and Disk Space	31
	3.12.	Long-Term Archiving Concept	32
	3.13.	Summary	33
4.	Dis	play Transactions of the PBS archive add on CPP	34



1. Introduction

The **PBS archive add ons** are constructed in modular form and cover the application modules such as FI, SD, MM, CO with a special program package specifically for the application in question. You can easily see from the name which PBS archive add on belongs to which SAP module, for example, CFI, CSD, CMM, CCO. Something that all PBS archive add ons have in common, is that they can be easily installed in the SAP system via SAP transport utilities "tp" and SAINT. For further details on the installation of the PBS archive add ons please see the installation manual (manual part A).

This administration manual was written to make construction and administration of the PBS archive add on CPP as easy as possible. At first, data archiving with SAP transaction SARA is discussed; the second topic is the construction of the PBS archive add on CPP from the SAP archive files.

The modular user manual of each PBS archive add on is composed of partial manuals:

- Part A: Installation
- Part B: Administration, Archive Construction and Maintenance
- Part C: Application Programs / Transactions

There are additional manuals for the PBS utilities: Conversion Tool, Archive Browser, Translation Tool.

Should you have questions or problems regarding the PBS archive add ons please call the PBS Software GmbH Service Hotline:

Phone:	+49 - 6251 - 174 110
Fax:	+49 - 6251 - 174 174
Email:	hotline@pbs-software.com

Release Compatibility

The **PBS archive add on CPP** discussed in this manual runs with the basis programs of SAP AG, 69190 Walldorf/Baden, for **SAP system releases 4.0, 4.5, 4.6, R/3 Enterprise, ERP 2004 and ERP 6.0.**



2. Overview of the PBS archive add on CPP

2.1. Object Names

As already described in the installation manual (Part A), PBS Software GmbH has its own namespace from Release 4.0. The names of the programs and objects described in this manual originate exclusively from this namespace. For customers using an SAP release up to 3.1, we have listed below the objects of the PBS namespace used in this manual along with those for the releases up to 3.1. For a complete list of all objects please refer to the text file log.txt, which you receive with the transport (see installation manual).

Object	Rel. 4.x	Rel. 3.x	Description
Program	/PBS/CPP_LDR3	YYCPLOAD	PBS load program
Program	/PBS/CPP_IDXG	YYCPIDXG	Activate PBS archive
Program	/PBS/CPP_SCAN	YYCPSCAN	Display PBS archive
Program	/PBS/CPP_ADMI	YYCPADMI	Insert index run into db
Program	/PBS/CPP_IDXD	YYCPIDXD	Deactivate PBS archive
Program	/PBS/CPP_DELR	YYCPDELR	Delete archive run
Program	/PBS/CPP_U001-9	YYCPU001-9	Test program
Program	/PBS/CPP_U050	YYCPU050	Technical display
Transaction	/PBS/YOA0	YOA0	Display production orders from database and archive
Transaction	/PBS/COA3	YOA3	Display archive data via PBS index
Transaction	/PBS/CO03	ZO03	Display production orders from database and archive
Transaction	/PBS/CPP	YCPP	Menu CPP
Transaction	/PBS/PBS	ZPBS	Menu PBS

Table 1: Comparison of object names



2.2. Supplied Menus

A menu is supplied with the PBS archive add on for all products and utilities of PBS Software GmbH as well as a special menu for the PBS archive add on CPP. Up to release 4.5 this menu can be started via the transaction /PBS/PBS (or ZPBS in 3.1). All programs described in this manual and the user transactions are contained in the menu. From release 4.6 the navigation has completely changed due to the implementation of the SAP Easy Access technique. This has also had an effect on the transactions in the environment of the PBS archive add ons. From these menus, you now have to generate activity groups (4.6B) and roles (from 4.6C) respectively, which then can be integrated into the user master. You can also create an activity group/role directly from the Easy Access menu.



Diagram 1: Creating activity group/role

You can freely define the name of the activity group/role; the name can also be within the PBS namespace. A PBS area menu is then transferred by pressing the function key **'Transfer menus from area menus'** by indicating the corresponding PBS menu name. During the transfer, the system query for the explosion of the area menu should be answered with 'yes'.

Ē la salatīta salatīt						
User <u>n</u> ames <u>E</u> dit <u>G</u> oto <u>I</u> nformation Envir	onment System <u>H</u> elp					
	😧 😵 🗅 141 (151 (151 (151 (151 (151 (151 (151					
Display User						
💅 🕄 Licence Data 🛛 🖉 References						
User KRUEGER						
Last Changed KRUEGER 23.10.200	03 16:53:26 Status Saved					
Address Logon data Defaults Parameters Roles Profiles Groups A P Reference User for Additional Rights						
Role Typ	be 🛛 Valid From 🖓 Valid To 🛛 Name 🛄					
O VPBS/PBS	👂 23.10.2003 31.12.9999 PBS archive add ons 🛛 💽					
	23.10.2003 31.12.9999 PBS archive add ons					

Diagram 2: Assignment to a user master



The activity group/role created in this way can now be integrated in the corresponding user master. We recommend that the global activity group/role /PBS/PBS is assigned to the administrators and the special function menu /PBS/CPP to the end users.



2.3. Basic Information on the PBS archive add on CPP

Construction and use of the PBS archive add on CPP always requires successful data archiving to have been performed using SAP means and access to the archive file created in this way. From 4.0B, this access can also be realized via an optical archiving system using "ArchiveLink". In this case, the status of the archive file must be "Accessible".

The PBS archive add on CPP uses the archiving runs of the archiving objects:

🗁 Archive Administration: Archive File Detail 🛛 🛛 🖂				
Archive File	012759-001PP_ORDER			
Date	29.05.2002			
Time	15:35:46			
Number of Objects	_ 3			
Size in MB	0,795			
Status	Deletion Completed			
Changeable Settings				
Notes				
File Name	/usr/sap/E47/SYS/global/RPP05290.ARCHIVE			
Logical Path				
Physical File Name	/usr/sap/E47/SYS/global/RPP05290.ARCHIVE			
	ODO Archive File Is Accessible			
V 9				

PP_ORDER production order

Diagram 3: Status of the archive file

You can determine the status of the archive files for the various archiving runs via transaction SARA. In order to display the documents correctly and realize the reporting via the PBS archive add on, the deletion run of the SAP archiving must have been successful.



The generated SAP archiving runs are read and written into the file system of the PBS archive add on CPP (see installation manual) via the PBS load program /PBS/CPP_LDR3. During this process, secondary indices are created in the file system to enable efficient access. If a PBS archive already exists, the load program adds the new data from the SAP archive to this already existing archive.



Diagram 4: Construction of the PBS archive add on CPP

Once the PBS archive has been constructed, it still has to be activated in the SAP system. For this purpose, please run ABAP /PBS/CPP_IDXG. The documents can now be displayed from the PBS archive add on.

Chapter 3 of this manual describes the programs for the construction and the activation of the PBS archive add on CPP.



3. Construction of the PBS archive add on CPP

3.1. Procedure

The archiving object PP_ORDER in the transaction SARA (SAP archiving tool) is used to archive production orders from the SAP database. The SAP archiving program PPARCHA1 archives the production orders in sequential files that can be accessed within the SAP file system. The archived production orders are then deleted from the database (PPARCHD1).

The archived production orders can no longer be reloaded into the database. Via SAP transactions, the archived production orders can only be evaluated sequentially (transaction COA3 "Production Order Reorg: Display Archive Data", read program PPARCHR1). The reduced load on the database can be measured using the function 'Detailed Analysis' of the transaction DB02 or the transaction DB15.

The generated SAP archive files can now be processed with the help of the load program of the PBS archive add on CPP. The load program reads the SAP archive files, creates secondary indices and stores this data in compressed form on magnetic disks outside the SAP database. Within the database, a subsequent run only stores a small amount of information in the table /PBS/CPP_ARCHIDX. To create the PBS index file the SAP Archive Development Kit (ADK) is also used, which simplifies the management of the PBS archive add on CPP, and allows a functionality identical to that of the SAP archiving objects. Thus it guarantees continuous functioning also in the case of release changes. The special archiving object of the PBS archive add on CPP is /PBS/CPP.

The production orders that have been archived and then transported into the PBS archive add on CPP are again available online and can be evaluated easily with the PBS transactions. The PBS transactions are identical to the corresponding SAP transactions (e.g. /PBS/CO03 corresponds to CO03) from a functional point of view. Production orders can be read and displayed both from the SAP database as well as from the PBS archive add on CPP using the transaction /PBS/YOA0.



A daily backup of the PBS archive add on CPP is – in contrast to the SAP database – not necessary as the archive data can no longer be changed. The SAP archive file that is created during the next reorganization of the database can be added to the existing PBS archive add on using the load program.

Below we mention the most important topics you have to keep in mind when archiving production orders with SARA. Please refer to the corresponding SAP documentation before you archive and delete production orders from your database!

The archive setup of the PBS archive add on CPP is described in the following chapters.



3.2. Preparation of SAP Archiving

Having called the transaction SARA, enter the name of the archiving object (PP_ORDER). Now you can select different buttons to start the accessible functions.



Diagram 5: Archive administration: PP_ORDER archiving

Before the actual archiving of the production orders, the "Customizing" settings first have to be checked. Select the button "Customizing" in the initial screen of the transaction SARA. You are taken to the selection screen of the Customizing options for PP_ORDER (normally, no changes of the technical and the basis parameters are necessary).





Diagram 6: Selection screen for Customizing options

The user-specific settings must then be carried out: The residence time of the production orders in the database must be maintained using the transaction **OPJH**. First, the production order type to be processed, e.g. "PP01", has to be selected in a selection screen.

Table Vie	ew <u>E</u> dit <u>G</u> oto <u>S</u> election Utilities System	ו <u>ו</u>
Ø	E 4 📙 😋 🚱 😒	
Change	e View ""Maintain Production (Orc
🦅 🕄 N	New Entries [🔒 🛃 🐼 🖪 🖪 🖪	
Type Nar	me	
ID01 PP	Production Order IDES (Int. No.)	
P4RW PP	Production Order IDES (Int. No.)	•
PP01 Star	indard Production Order (int. number)	
PP02 Std	Production Order (ext. number)	
PP03 PP	production order (rework) (int. no.)	
PP04 Pro	oduction Order as Assembly Order	
PP05 Kan	nban replenishment using Prod Order	
PP06 PP	production order (PDC) (int. no.)	
PP07 PP	Order Network (GR/GI) (Int.Nr)	
PP08 PP	Production Order (Cost.Coll.)(Int.)	
PPC1 Ord	Jer Type for Costing	
PPK1 PP	production order for kanban	

Diagram 7: Definition of residence periods

By clicking on the magnifying glass you are taken to the processing of the detail maintenance for the selected order type (here, PPS production order, PP01). For



archiving, you only have to maintain here the residence time 1 and 2. Residence time 1 is related to the setting of the deletion flag, residence time 2 to the setting of the deletion indicator.

After maintaining the residence times, the preprocessing program to set the deletion flag or the deletion indicator can be started. To do this, select the corresponding buttons or start the preprocessing program PPARCHP1 directly. The preprocessing program should be started in the background via a variant that has been defined correspondingly.

글 Table ViewEditGotoSelection Utilities Systemelp				
😵 🔜 🔹 🕄 🖓 🔛 🚱 🚱 😫 🖉 🖉 🖉				
Change View ""Maintain Production Order Types"": Details				
🎾 New Entries 🗈 🖬 🕼 🕼 👪				
Order category 10				
Order Type PP01 Standard Production Order (int. number)				
Control indicator /				
CO Partner Update Semi-active 📓				
✓ Classification				
Commit. management				
Reorganization				
Residence Time 1				
Residence Time 2				
Cost controlling				
Settlement profile FA_ABP Prod. order settlement profile				
Functional Area				
Coll.order with goods movement				
Status management /				
StatusProfile Header PP000001 Production order stat. profile				
Oprtn status profile				
- Prov Surger - Prov				

Diagram 8: Detailed screen to maintain residence times



⊡ Variant Edit Goto System Help	
	· 🔲 🏊 🞧 🚱 🗅 ዘን ዘን የኦ የኦ የኦ የኦ 🗐 🗖 👰 🗍
Maintain Variant: Report Pl	PPARCHP1, Variant TEST
🔊 Attributes	
Selection Criteria	
Order number	to
Order type	to
Plant	to 🖻
MRP controller	to 🖻
Production scheduler	to
Selection profile status	
Basic start date	to
Actual deliv. date	to
Exceeding of delivery date	0 Days
Actions	
 Set deletion flag 	
 Set deletion indicator 	
Options	
Maximum number of orders	99.999
 Detailed log 	
🗌 Test run	

Diagram 9: Selection screen of the preprocessing program

The production orders to be processed are to be selected according to the entry options. In the areas "Actions" and "Options" you can now select the required processing, e.g.: test run or update run. You can reset the setting of the deletion flag, but not of the deletion indicator.



3.3. Archiving of Production Orders

Having completed/checked the Customizing settings, you can start with the actual archiving of production orders from the database. The archiving program used for this purpose is started as a background job via a variant that is maintained by selecting the button "Archive" under "Actions" of the SARA initial screen. The selection of the production orders to be archived is carried out in the same way as the preprocessing via a corresponding selection screen. Under "Options" you can select by marking with a cross if the deletion run is first to be carried out only as a test run (in this case the update run for the deletion of the archived production orders must be started separately at a later time).

⊡ 	lp						
0 E	🕒 (😋 😧) 🚨 () () () () () () () () () (
Maintain Variant: Report PPARCHA1, Variant TEST							
😍 Attributes							
Selection Criteria							
Order number	🔁 to 🖻						
Order type	to 😒						
Plant	to 😒						
Material number	to 🍠						
MRP controller	to 🖻						
Production scheduler	to 🗢						
Basic start date	to						
Sh. text							
Short text for archiving run							
Options /							
Maximum number of orders	99.999						
Block size or orders	10						
Create Archive File							
Deletion program as test run							

Diagram 10: Selection variant for the archiving of production orders

Having successfully completed the archiving runs, you can display the generated archive files by clicking the "Management" button.



LE Archive Administration <u>E</u> dit <u>G</u> oto System <u>H</u> e	lp				
🔮 💦 🔹 🔄 🖉 🚱 😂 😂 🖓 🔛 🖓 🖓 🔛 🖉 🖓 🔚					
Archive Administration: Overview	of Archiving Sessions				
🔢 🕄 🖏 🗟 🚱 😡 Spool List 🛛 Storage	e System Customizing Database Tables Information System 🗞 Statistics				
Archiving object PP_ORDER Pro	duction Order				
Sessions and Files for Archiving Object	Note				
☑ ☑ Incomplete Archiving Sessions					
12649 - 12654 (25.03.2002 - 25.03.2002)					
🗢 👀 Complete Archiving Sessions					
▽ 12293 - 12759 (27.10.2001 - 29.05.2002)					
12759 - 29.05.2002	PBS_IC021686				
12574 - 07.02.2002	PBS_IC021973				
12568 - 31.01.2002	PBS_IC021973				
12566 - 30.01.2002	PBS_IC021973				
12552 - 30.01.2002	PBS_IC021973				
▶ 12293 - 27.10.2001	PBS_IC021973				

Diagram 11: SAP archive administration: display of the created archives



3.4. Administration Board

The PBS Administration Board is the central administration instrument of the indices that have been generated using the ADK technique.

ē						
Ŀ	ist <u>E</u> dit <u>C</u>	heck Displa	y <u>G</u> enerate S	System <u>H</u> elp		
0				C 😧 🔇 I 🗅 🕷	130021	🐹 🗾 🔞 📑
Ac	iministra	ation Boa	rd CPP -	5 active i	ndices	
8		*	2 3 5			
	Activo india	no Inactivo	indicac			
_	Active Indici	es macuve	e maices			
	Index	created on	User	ADK status	PBS status	
	040704	15.07.2009	KRUEGER	COC Complete	CCC active	
	040703	15.07.2009	KRUEGER	CCC Complete	CC active	
	040702	15.07.2009	KRUEGER	COC Complete	CCC active	
	040701	15.07.2009	KRUEGER	CCC Complete	CCC active	
	040700	15.07.2009	KRUEGER	COC Complete	CCC active	

Diagram 12: Administration Board of PBS archive add on CPP

lcon	Description
*	By activating an index area the indices are made available to the user. Only deactivated index areas can be activated.
	Deactivating an index area means that the indices are no longer available to users.
	Deletion of an index area results in all dependent table contents and the physical files being flagged for deletion.
2	The log of the run for an index area provides information about the number of processed indices, about the runtime and the selection criteria.
	By using the program /PBS/CPP_SCAN it is possible to select an index area and display its content.
•	The index generation function enables you to index ADK files from the archiving object PP_ORDER. The indices are also stored in ADK files. The archiving object for this is /PBS/CPP.

Table 2: Functions in the Administration Board



3.5. The Load Program /PBS/CPP_LDR3

The program /PBS/CPP_LDR3 is used for the construction of the archive index files of the PBS archive add on CPP. It generates all necessary indices for the archived production orders corresponding to each SAP archive file, together with the respective location of the production order in the SAP archive file. This index data is not stored in the SAP database but in the SAP file system on magnetic disk, using the ADK technique (Archive Development Kit) of SAP AG. Moreover, the program package of the PBS archive add on CPP contains the archiving object /PBS/CPP. This is used by the program /PBS/CPP_LDR3 to create a file for the archive index data that is completely identical to an SAP archive file. However, this file does not contain archived production orders but archive indices that you can use to access directly the archived production orders in the SAP archive files.

⊂ Proαram Edit Goto System Help	
I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	🗕 (i)
Archive add on CPP: Index Generation	1
•	
Data from SAP archive	
Select manually: SAP archive from	01.01.1990 🕝
O Coloct outomotion/lur CAD prokiup from	01 01 1000
Split automatic, in max, 999 runs	01.01.1330
with a maximum of 999 single files.	
Colort production orders	
Only production orders	01.01.1990
Process all production orders from input	
O Process sequential number range: from	1 to 9.999.999
Set up additional indices /	
Reservation number	
Component	
Purch. requisition	
Order status	
Collective order	
Postprocess.prog.	
Activate index	

Diagram 13: Selection screen of the load program /PBS/CPP_LDR3



Parameters

Select manually:

If this parameter is selected, the SAP archive files that are currently available are selected when you press the button "SAP archive".

• Select automatically:

If this option is selected, all available SAP archive files that were created after the date indicated are processed automatically as long as they match the maximum number of runs with a maximum number each.

• Only prod. orders with basic finish date after

Use this date to filter out data from the input based on its "last changed on" date.

Process all production orders from input

If this option is selected, the SAP archive files that are selected automatically or manually are completely processed.

Process sequential number range from 1 to 999999999

This option enables the selection - be it automatic or manual – to be processed in several runs. The number indicated here has no relation to the process order number to be processed. All process orders of the selected SAP archive files are "counted up".

Set up additional indices

In addition to the "standard indices" you can set up additional indices for "reservation number" or "component number". Both of these indices can only be evaluated by customer reports.



3.6. Load Process

Having entered all necessary information in the selection screen of load report /PBS/CPP_LDR3, the selection screen can be saved as a selection variant and started as a background process.

Important:

The PBS archive add on CPP must be set up per client.

During runtime the program generates the PBS archive add on for production orders from the archive data.

Important:

We recommend a data backup of the created files after each construction of the PBS archive add on. However, since a restart function is available for the load program, this is not really necessary.

Job log:

After each run of the load program a statistical report is generated, which can look as follows. This statistic can also be stored in the PBS archive add on and viewed later using the program /PBS/CPP_SCAN.

User name:		KRUEGER
Date:		31.10.2003
Start of selection		15:11:08
Start processing archive	: 012751-001PP_ORDER	15:11:08
Start processing archive	: 012752-001PP_ORDER	15:11:08
Start processing archive	: 012753-001PP_ORDER	15:11:08
Start processing archive	: 012754-001PP_ORDER	15:11:08
Start processing archive	: 012757-001PP_ORDER	15:11:08
Start processing archive	: 012759-001PP_ORDER	15:11:08
Start processing archive	: 012759-002PP_ORDER	15:11:08
Start processing archive	: 012759-003PP_ORDER	15:11:08
Start processing archive	: 012759-004PP_ORDER	15:11:08
Start processing archive	: 012759-005PP_ORDER	15:11:08
End of Selection		15:11:17
Start SORT		15:11:17
End SORT		15:11:17
LOG SETUP PRO	GRAM CPP LOAD	



PBS archive add on CPP for SAP

Number of input SAP archive runs	(PP_ORDER):	5	
Number of input records		15	
- number of input records not s	elected:	0	
Production order indices	input	exported	
- for order numberAUFNR:	15	15	
- for ord.cat/p.AUTYP/WERKS:	15	15	
- for ord.typeAUART/KOKRS:	15	15	
- for WBS element PSPEL:	0	0	
- for MRP controller DISPO:	15	15	
- for prod. scheduler FEVOR:	15	15	
- for material number MATNR:	15	15	
- for sales order KDAUF:	0	0	
- for reservation noRSNUM:	0	0	
- for componentKOMPO:	0	0	
Archive data cluster		exported	
- for order numberAUFNR:		1	
- for ord.cat/p.AUTYP/WERKS:		1	
- for ord.typeAUART/KOKRS:		1	
- for WBS element PSPEL:		0	
- for MRP controller DISPO:		1	
- for prod. scheduler FEVOR:		0	
- for material number MATNR:		1	
- for sales order KDAUF:		0	
- for reservation noRSNUM:		0	
- for componentKOMPO:		0	

Diagram	14:	Selection	statistic	of	the	program	/PBS/CP	ΡI	LDR3



3.7. Index Activation

After the PBS archive add on has been constructed using the load program /PBS/CPP_LDR3, the administration table /PBS/CPP_ARCHIDX has to be loaded into the SAP system. This table contains the current directory of the PBS archive add on CPP. For the update of the management table in question the report /PBS/CPP_IDXG is used, the request screen of which is shown in the diagram below.



Diagram 15: Request screen of program /PBS/CPP_IDXG

The parameter "Automatically all" can be used for activating all created stocks. Using the option "Automatically last one" only the last created stock is activated. It is also possible to select manually using the parameter "Manually".



ビ List Edit Goto System Help						
		I 🛛 I 😋 🙆 🕻	0, 0° (3° 41 (1) 🗧 §	🖇 🐹 🖉 😰 📑		
PBS archive add	l on CPF	?: Index Act	ivation			
31.10.2003				PBS archive add on CPP:	Index Activation	
Archive_key	Object_	ID		OFFSET		
021991-001/PBS/CPP	100IKD	001	021991000001	2.049		
021991-001/PBS/CPP	100IKD	002	021991000002	2.504		
021991-001/PBS/CPP	100IKD	032	021991000003	2.961		
021991-001/PBS/CPP	100IKD	101	021991000004	3.780		
021991-001/PBS/CPP	100IN0	000060002368	021991000001	4.465		
021991-001/PBS/CPP	100IP1	400-100	021991000001	5.058		
021991-001/PBS/CPP	100IP1	400-140	021991000002	5.563		
021991-001/PBS/CPP	1001P1	400-150	021991000003	6.055		
021991-0017PBS7CPP	1001P1	P-100	021991000004	0.555		
021991-001/PBS/CPP	1001P1	P-100-001	021991000005	7.007		
021991-001/PB5/CPP	1001P1	P-100-002	021991000000	7.402		
021991-001/PB5/CPP	1001P1	P-100-031	021991000007	7.921		
021991-001/PB5/CPP	1001P1	P-100-032	021991000008	8.044		
021991-001/PB5/CPP	1001P1	000007	021991000009	9.199		
021991-001/PB5/CPP	100150	A 900897	021991000001	9.700		
021991-0017FB576FF	100138	101000	021991000001	10.030		
021001-001/PB5/CFP	100156	100041	021991000002	12 125		
021001-001/PB5/CFP	100156	100043	021001000003	12.120		
021001-001/PB5/CPP	100156	100001	021991000004	12.031		
021001-001/FD0/CFP	100138	100073	021001000000	12 500		
021001-001/FB0/CFF	100136	PP011000	021001000000	14 200		
021001-001/100/0FF	100130	PP020001	021001000001	14.203		
021001-001/100/0FF	100186	001	021001000002	15 763		
021991-001/PBS/CPP	100105	20031031	021931000001	16 616		
021031-00171-007017	100L00	20031031	021001	17.670		
ozroon conniboron	roothor	20001001	021001	11.010		

Diagram 16: CPP entries in table /PBS/CPP_ARCHIDX

3.8. Further Load Processes

Due to the ADK technique of the load program used in the PBS archive add on CPP, merge runs are no longer necessary. A PBS archive index file is generated corresponding to each SAP archive file. Therefore, all further load runs have the identical procedure as in first load run.



3.9. Delete PBS Archive Index

The archive indices created with the load program /PBS/CPP_LDR3 of the PBS archive add on CPP can, if necessary, be deleted. In this process, the program /PBS/CPP_DELR is used to delete the entries of the PBS archive indices from the database tables ADMI_RUN, ADMI_FILES, and /PBS/CPP_ARCHIDX. Furthermore, the created file in which the PBS archive indices are stored is physically deleted from the magnetic disk.

🖙 Archive Administration: Select Files for Read Program						
/PBS/CPP	PBS archive add on CPP - Production Orders					
	 021991 31.10.2003 PBS archive add on CPP 021990 31.10.2003 PBS archive add on CPP 021989 31.10.2003 PBS archive add on CPP 					

Diagram 17: Selection for deleting index files that were set up

The PBS archiving run to be deleted is selected from a list of archiving runs (multiple selection possible). The result of the deletion run is then displayed in the form of a log. Besides the deleted components of the PBS archiving run, a reference for the administration of the corresponding SAP archiving run is corrected, so that this run can be used again for the construction of a PBS archive index.



Diagram 18: Display of the deleted components for an index run



3.10. PBS Archive Utilities

The following utilities in the form of ABAP/4 programs are available for the management/test of the PBS archive add on CPP:

Program	Short description
/PBS/CPP_SCAN	PBS archive add on CPP: display contents
/PBS/CPP_U001	Tech. Display production order from SAP archive
/PBS/CPP_U002	Test access via index order number
/PBS/CPP_U003	Test access via index order type/plant
/PBS/CPP_U004	Test access via index order type/KOKRS
/PBS/CPP_U005	Test access via index PSP-ELEMENT (SPROJN)
/PBS/CPP_U006	Test access via index DISPONENT
/PBS/CPP_U007	Test access via index production controller
/PBS/CPP_U008	Test access via index material
/PBS/CPP_U009	Test access via index customer order
/PBS/CPP_U050	Tech. display of the PBS archive file contents

Table 3: PBS archive utilities

A very useful tool for checking/managing the PBS archive add on CPP is the program /PBS/CPP_SCAN. This program allows a (technical) view into the data archived with the PBS archive add on CPP. You can display the contents of the secondary indices in question, the references to the production orders themselves, as well as administrative information of the PBS archive add on CPP. When doing this, the header entries of the "data cluster" used for the storing and – via selection of certain header entries – the corresponding detailed information is displayed in a basic list. By selecting "Statistics load program", you can display the setup logs of all load program runs of the program /PBS/CPP_LDR3 that have been carried out up to now.



PBS archive add on CPP for SAP

⊡ Proαram Edit Goto Svstem Helα	
	② ② 😒 🗅 出 出 2 当 公 2 🕱 🛛 🖓 🖷
Archive add on CPP: Archi	ive Tool
\odot	
Client	100
No. data records	1000000
Start with key	
Archive index Order number	or or
Sec. index order cat./plant	○ or
Sec. index order type/CO Area	🔘 or
Sec. index WBS element	🔘 or
Sec. index MRP controller	○ or
Sec. index production scheduler	🔘 or
Sec. index material	○ or
Sec. index sales order	🔘 or
Sec. index LEAD_AUFNR	○ or
Sec. index AUFNR->LEAD_AUFNR	🔘 or
Sec. index Reservation number	🔘 or
Sec. index Component	○ or
Sec. index Purchase Requisit.	🔘 or
Sec. index Order Status	○ or
Statistics load program	🔘 or
Run logs	

Diagram 19: Delimitations of the program /PBS/CPP_SCAN

ビ <u>S</u> ys	stem H <u>e</u> l	p					
0		1	📙 😋 😧 🄇) 🗳 i) 出 に 後 し 彩 に 彩 に 彩 し 彩) 🖪 🛒 🛠 🗘 🕈 C	🕜 🖪
PB	S archi	ve add on CPP:	Display th	e arcl	hive con	itents	
Ausv	wählen						
PBS a	PBS archive add on CPP: Display the archive contents						
C1t 100	SIART ISO	SRTFD 000060001589	0012270000	RUN 01	NUMBR	ARCHIVEKEY 001227-001/PBS/CPP	0FFSET 29.095
Total	amount	of phys. indices:				1	

Diagram 20: Basic list for the index "order number"



<u>S</u>ystem H

0

🗉 🔄 I 😋 🚱 😪 I 🖨 🖨 I 🏝 🏠 🕰 I 🕱 I 🛒 🖉 I 🚱 📑

PBS archive add on CPP: Display the archive contents

AUFNR	WERKS	AUART	AUTYP	ARCHIVEKEY	OFFSET	DOCUMENT	ARC-DAT
700026	1000	PP01	10	001159-001PP_ORDER	642.514	000000	13.09.2000
60001047	3000	PP01	10	000413-001PP_ORDER	641.849	000000	13.09.2000
60001065	3000	PP01	10	000413-001PP_ORDER	659.220	000000	13.09.2000
60001066	3200	PP01	10	000413-001PP_ORDER	671.491	000000	13.09.2000
60001085	3100	PP01	10	000413-001PP_ORDER	684.899	000000	13.09.2000
60001166	3000	PP01	10	000413-001PP_ORDER	693.867	000000	13.09.2000
60001167	3000	PP01	10	000413-001PP_ORDER	707.748	000000	13.09.2000
60001168	3000	PP01	10	000413-001PP_ORDER	719.177	000000	13.09.2000
60001185	1000	PP01	10	000413-001PP_ORDER	737.812	000000	13.09.2000
60001225	3100	PP01	10	000413-001PP_ORDER	752.136	000000	13.09.2000
60001226	3100	PP01	10	000413-001PP_ORDER	761.553	000000	13.09.2000
60001306	3000	PP01	10	000413-001PP_ORDER	771.120	000000	13.09.2000
60001307	3100	PP01	10	000413-001PP_ORDER	787.882	000000	13.09.2000
60001365	3100	PP01	10	000413-001PP_ORDER	798.438	000000	13.09.2000
60001425	1000	PP01	10	000413-001PP_ORDER	807.435	000000	13.09.2000
60001445	3000	PP01	10	000413-001PP_ORDER	817.594	000000	13.09.2000
60001466	3000	PP01	10	000413-001PP_ORDER	831.480	000000	13.09.2000
60001585	3000	PP01	10	000413-001PP_ORDER	843.208	000000	13.09.2000
60001587	3000	PP01	10	000413-001PP_ORDER	858.212	000000	13.09.2000
60001588	3000	PP01	10	000413-001PP_ORDER	864.652	000000	13.09.2000
60001589	3000	PP01	10	000413-001PP_ORDER	870.855	000000	13.09.2000

Diagram 21: Detailed list for the first cluster of the basic list

Further Utilities:

The utilities /PBS/CPP_U001 to /PBS/CPP_U009 are examples and are used to demonstrate the access routines of the PBS archive add on CPP. These utilities can be particularly helpful when adjusting customer-specific programs to the PBS archive add on CPP.

/PBS/CPP_U050 displays the corresponding secondary indices of the PBS archive add on CPP directly from the archive file. The program thus checks the readability of these archive files of the archiving object /PBS/CPP. The document number of the file to be displayed can be taken from the load program log.

The program /PBS/CPP_U050 can be started before /PBS/CPP_IDXG writes the table of contents into the table /PBS/CPP_ARCHIDX of the database.



3.11. Path and Disk Space

The PBS archive add on CPP is set up in database-independent file systems. The system administrator's task here is to reserve free memory capacity for construction of the PBS archive index. If the directory (ARCHIVE_DATA_FILE) suggested in the SAP file system is not to be used, you can use the transactions AOBJ and FILE to enter a separate directory for the PBS archiving object /PBS/CPP. If necessary, this directory must also be created physically on the magnetic disk.

The amount of disk space to be made available depends on the number of production orders that are to be kept in the PBS archive index. In order to store the complete index data for an archived production order, about 100 bytes are required. An additional 5 bytes per document for management information which is kept in the SAP database must also be reckoned.

Performance and runtime during the construction of the archive indices of the PBS archive add on CPP strongly depend on the efficiency of the system that is used and the data volume to be processed.



3.12. Long-Term Archiving Concept

Many users have to retain production orders that were archived in the PBS archive add on CPP accessible online for a long period (for example more than five years). If, additionally, the data volume is very large, the complete data volume archived in the PBS archive add on CPP can increase so much that a good performance of the online accesses to the PBS archive is no longer possible, even in the case of an efficient system.

To reduce the data volume that is accessed online, the user may wish to occasionally "switch off" one or more archive runs of the PBS archive add on CPP from online access, without deleting the actual PBS archives. As the indices of the different archive runs are not merged in the PBS archive add on CPP, this wish can be easily fulfilled by the utilities of the PBS archive add on CPP: only the entries in the administration table referring to a certain PBS archive run of the PBS archive add on CPP have to be deleted to exclude this specific archive run from online access. This process can easily be reversed again: you only have to add the entries of the administration tables – that in a way represent a type of table of contents for the PBS archive add on CPP – for the (existing) PBS archive runs again.

The "deactivated" PBS archive runs (PBS indices and original SAP archive files) can be archived on any media, provided they are not used. The easiest way is to remove them using SAP ArchiveLink to an optical archive or to an HSM system. From there, they can easily be loaded back if required.

To deactivate specific PBS archive runs, proceed as follows: From the main menu /PBS/CPP, start the menu option **Archive => Additional Tools => Deactivate index.** Select those PBS archive runs of the PBS archive add on CPP that you want to exclude from online access from the option "File list". Before carrying out this step, we recommend you to use the **archive tool** of CPP and write down the corresponding SAP archive files from the run logs, in case you want to transfer the SAP archive files and the PBS indices of the PBS archive add on CPP to a separate storage medium afterwards. Now start the program with your selection. To enable online access to the PBS archive runs of CPP that have been "switched off" again, simply start program "Load Admin.Table" from the "PBS archive" menu of the PBS archive add on CPP. First you only need to place the PBS index file and the corresponding SAP archive file in the original file directory.



3.13. Summary

Archiving of production orders from the SAP database using the transaction 'SARA' (or 'CO78' respectively) for the archiving object PP_ORDER.

Construction of the PBS archive indices for the SAP archive files via the PBS archive add on CPP using the program /PBS/CPP_LDR3.

Loading of the archive table of contents of the PBS archive add on CPP into the table /PBS/CPP_ARCHIDX using the program /PBS/CPP_IDXG.

Testing the archive access using the PBS utility /PBS/CPP_SCAN.



4. Display Transactions of the PBS archive add on CPP

The transactions of the PBS archive add on are explained in detail in manual part C (user manual). This chapter only gives a general overview of the supplied transactions in the PBS namespace and for the SAP release 4.x.

PBS	SAP	Transaction Description
/PBS/CPP	-/-	Menu of the PBS archive add on CPP
/PBS/YOA0	-/-	Display production orders from database and archive
/PBS/COA3	COA3	Display archive data via PBS index
/PBS/CO03	CO03	Display production orders from database and archive

Table 4: Transactions of the PBS archive add on CPP

